


 
 

MINUTES 
FOR THE June 2, 2014 MEETING 

OF THE LEANDER TIRZ No. 1 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of the Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Leander 
TIRZ  No. 1 to be held at Pat Bryson Municipal Hall, 201 North Brushy Street, 
Leander, Texas on the 2nd day of June, 2014 at 12:00 p.m..  At the meeting the Board 
of Directors will consider and act upon the following agenda items: 
 
 

1. Open meeting and roll call. 
Cynthia Long opened the meeting at 12:04pm 
In attendance were Cynthia Long, Virginia Naumann, Kent Cagle, Shanan 
Shepherd.  Also in attendance were Rick Rosenberg, Tom Yantis, Robert 
Powers, Paige Saenz, Debbie Haile, and Debora Penberg 
 

2. Approval of the minutes:  January 23, 2014 
Motion made by Cynthia Long to approve.  Second by Virginia Naumann. 
Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

3. Consideration and possible action on a memorandum of agreement for cost 
reimbursement for eligible TIRZ projects associated with the development of the 
Oak Creek project 
Tom Yantis, Development Services Director with City of Leander explained. 
Rick Rosenberg with DPFG gave a presentation 
The Board members directed staff to create a Memorandum of Agreement 
 

4. Consider recommendation to the City of Leander City Council for the Leander 
Tax Reinvestment Zone #1 FY 2014-15 Annual Budget 
The Board reviewed the budget for FY 2014/15 
 
Motion made by Cynthia Long to approve.  Second by Shanan Shepherd. 
Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

      5.   Adjourn 
            With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:08 
 
 
 
       Attest: 
 

 
 
 _____________________________                 _____________________________ 
Cynthia Long, Secretary/Treasurer                     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
                            City of Leander 
 



AGENDA ITEM #  

 

 
Executive Summary 

October 13, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  An Ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas amending the Project and 
Financing Plan for the Reinvestment Zone Number One to reallocate the estimated project 
costs among project categories; to update estimated project costs and the estimated time when 
project costs will be incurred; assigning projects subject to reimbursement agreements to 
Project Categories in the Zone Plan; establishing the Oak Creek Subaccount in the Tax 
Increment Fund; and providing for related matters. 
 
Background:   
This ordinance amends the TIRZ Project Plan as stated above.  The total of all projects stays the 
same and estimated costs by category are modified to reflect commitments made in previously 
approved reimbursement agreements and more current information. 
 
This item will be forwarded to the City Council on October 16, 2014 with the TIRZ Board's 
recommendation. 
   
Origination:  City of Leander and Sentinel/Cotter Leander, LLC 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Ordinance amending the TIRZ Project Plan 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
  



AMENITY CENTER

PARK

FIRE STATION

"B"

"A"

"C"

"D"

ALLEY

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

M
U

ST
AN

G
 B

R
O

O
K

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

LACEFLO
W

ER

C
O

U
LE

E
 D

R
IV

E PECOS STREET

A
N

G
E

LI
N

A
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

TO
P

A
Z 

P
A

TH
W

A
Y

FE
LD

S
P

A
R

 S
TR

E
A

M

TO
PAZ PATH

W
AY

NECHES S
TREET

P
E

C
A

N
 B

A
Y

O
U

WILLOW BROOK

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

C
ANADIAN SPR

ING
S CANADIAN SPRINGS

McKENZIE DRAW
WEST BROADE STREET

W
E

S
T 

B
R

O
A

D
E

 S
TR

E
E

T

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

FIREW
HEEL

90°0'0"

89°20'52"

9
0

°0
'0

"

90
°0

'2
1"

20'

WATER PROJECTS

WEST BROADE STREET
SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

TIRZ FUNDED IMPROVEMENTS



FIRE STATION

"B"

"A"

"C"
"D"

ALLEY

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

M
U

ST
AN

G
 B

R
O

O
K

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

LACEFLO
W

ER

C
O

U
LE

E
 D

R
IV

E PECOS STREET

A
N

G
E

LI
N

A
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

TO
P

A
Z 

P
A

TH
W

A
Y

FE
LD

S
P

A
R

 S
TR

E
A

M

TO
PAZ PATH

W
AY

NECHES S
TREET

P
E

C
A

N
 B

A
Y

O
U

WILLOW BROOK

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

C
ANADIAN SPR

ING
S CANADIAN SPRINGS

McKENZIE DRAW
WEST BROADE STREET

W
E

S
T 

B
R

O
A

D
E

 S
TR

E
E

T

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

FIREW
HEEL

90°0'0"

89°20'52"

9
0

°0
'0

"

90
°0

'2
1"

20'

FIRE STATION

"B"

"A"

"C"
"D"

WATER QUALITY BASIN "A"

REGIONAL FACILITIES/PONDS/TREATMENT (BMPs)
DRAINAGE-DETENTION PROJECTS-

WATER QUALITY BASIN "B"
WATER QUALITY BASIN "C"
WATER QUALITY BASIN "D"

TIRZ FUNDED IMPROVEMENTS

WATER QUALITY BASIN "A"

REGIONAL FACILITIES/PONDS/TREATMENT (BMPs)
DRAINAGE-DETENTION PROJECTS-

WATER QUALITY BASIN "B"
WATER QUALITY BASIN "C"
WATER QUALITY BASIN "D"

TIRZ FUNDED IMPROVEMENTS



FIRE STATION

ALLEY

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

M
U

ST
AN

G
 B

R
O

O
K

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

LACEFLO
W

ER

C
O

U
LE

E
 D

R
IV

E PECOS STREET

A
N

G
E

LI
N

A
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

TO
P

A
Z 

P
A

TH
W

A
Y

FE
LD

S
P

A
R

 S
TR

E
A

M

TO
PAZ PATH

W
AY

NECHES S
TREET

P
E

C
A

N
 B

A
Y

O
U

WILLOW BROOK

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

C
ANADIAN SPR

ING
S CANADIAN SPRINGS

McKENZIE DRAW
WEST BROADE STREET

W
E

S
T 

B
R

O
A

D
E

 S
TR

E
E

T

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

FIREW
HEEL

90°0'0"

89°20'52"

9
0

°0
'0

"

90
°0

'2
1"

20'

FIRE STATION TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS

WEST BROADE STREET
SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

ENHANCED BRIDGE TREATMENT

TIRZ FUNDED IMPROVEMENTS
TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS

WEST BROADE STREET
SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

ENHANCED BRIDGE TREATMENT

TIRZ FUNDED IMPROVEMENTS



AMENITY CENTER

PARK

FIRE STATION

"B"

"A"

"C"

"D"

ALLEY

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

M
U

ST
AN

G
 B

R
O

O
K

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

LACEFLO
W

ER

C
O

U
LE

E
 D

R
IV

E PECOS STREET

A
N

G
E

LI
N

A
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

TO
P

A
Z 

P
A

TH
W

A
Y

FE
LD

S
P

A
R

 S
TR

E
A

M

TO
PAZ PATH

W
AY

NECHES S
TREET

P
E

C
A

N
 B

A
Y

O
U

WILLOW BROOK

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

C
ANADIAN SPR

ING
S CANADIAN SPRINGS

McKENZIE DRAW
WEST BROADE STREET

W
E

S
T 

B
R

O
A

D
E

 S
TR

E
E

T

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

FIREW
HEEL

90°0'0"

89°20'52"

9
0

°0
'0

"

90
°0

'2
1"

20'

AMENITY CENTER

PARK

FIRE STATION

"B"

"A"

"C"

"D"

PRIMARY ENTRY FEATURE

SECONDARY ENTRY FEATURE

LAKE TREATMENTS

NATIVE AREA RESTORATION

DESIGN ENHANCEMENTS

STREET LIGHTING

TRAILHEADS

TIRZ FUNDED IMPROVEMENTS

PRIMARY ENTRY FEATURE

SECONDARY ENTRY FEATURE

LAKE TREATMENTS

NATIVE AREA RESTORATION

DESIGN ENHANCEMENTS

STREET LIGHTING

TRAILHEADS

TIRZ FUNDED IMPROVEMENTS



Leander TIRZ Project Plan

Leander TIRZ Project Plan (Rev. 10/13/2014)

Funding Category 2006-2008 2008-2010 2010-2015 2015-2020 2020-2025 2025-2031 Adopted Total Revised  Total

Adopted 

Remaining 

Balance

Revised 

Remaining 

Balance RB270 TVI Williamson Co. City of Leander Crescent Oak Creek

Cash 

Contributions

Impact Fee 

Revenues** Total Committed

Administration 6,600$          33,567$          650,000$        100,000$        100,000$        59,833$        950,000$        950,000$        300,000$          300,000$          650,000$            650,000$              

Engineering Design-Consulting 42,349$          650,000$        650,000$        757,651$      1,100,000$    2,100,000$    (416,964)$         583,036$          369,912$        997,052$            150,000$         1,516,964$          

Water

Transmission 437,400$        3,000,000$    3,000,000$    1,987,600$  8,425,000$    8,425,000$    7,630,000$       7,630,000$       795,000$            2,730,000$          (2,730,000)$  795,000$              

Storage

           contribution 2,000,000$    -$                2,000,000$       -$                   -$                      

Necessary Connections 1,840,000$    1,500,000$    500,000$      3,840,000$    3,840,000$    3,407,550$       3,407,550$       432,450$      432,450$              

Offsite Contribution 450,000$        3,600,000$    450,000$        3,600,000$       450,000$          -$                      

Sub-Tot 17,865,000$  12,715,000$  16,637,550$     11,487,550$     1,227,450$          

Wastewater

Brushy Creek Basin

Interceptor 1,000,000$    1,090,000$    2,090,000$    2,090,000$    1,839,088$       1,839,088$       708,200$              (457,288)$      250,912$              

Laterals/Main Collectors 500,000$        550,000$        250,000$      1,300,000$    1,300,000$    839,415$          839,415$          1,300,000$          (839,415)$      460,585$              

Lift Station 500,000$        250,000$        250,000$      1,000,000$    1,000,000$    783,171$          783,171$          612,000$              (395,171)$      216,829$              

Force Main 150,000$        240,000$        390,000$        390,000$        390,000$          390,000$          -$                      

San Gabriel Basin

Interceptor 100,000$        650,000$        750,000$        750,000$        371,880$          371,880$          378,120$              378,120$              

Laterals 250,000$        250,000$        200,000$      700,000$        700,000$        129,700$          129,700$          570,300$              570,300$              

Lift Station 300,000$        300,000$        350,000$      950,000$        950,000$        470,000$          470,000$          480,000$              480,000$              

Force Main 200,000$        200,000$        200,000$        200,000$          200,000$          -$                      

Offsite Contribution 250,000$        250,000$        250,000$      750,000$        750,000$        750,000$          750,000$          -$                      

Sub-Tot 8,130,000$    8,130,000$    5,773,254$       5,773,254$       2,356,746$          

Transportation

RM 2243 1,075,000$    1,075,000$    2,150,000$    2,150,000$    2,150,000$       2,150,000$       -$                      

San Gabriel Parkway 2,000,000$    2,700,000$    2,700,000$    4,700,000$    (2,000,000)$      -$                   4,700,000$        4,700,000$          

CR 273 388,511$        311,489$        700,000$        700,000$        150,000$          150,000$          200,000$        200,000$            150,000$         550,000$              

CR 269 700,000$        700,000$        1,400,000$    1,400,000$    1,400,000$       1,400,000$       -$                      

US 183 Improvements 1,000,000$    1,000,000$    1,050,000$  3,050,000$    3,050,000$    3,050,000$       3,050,000$       -$                      

Required Roadways 12,000$          1,000,000$    1,500,000$    1,488,000$  2,250,000$    4,000,000$    (295,224)$         1,454,776$       715,000$              1,830,224$  2,545,224$          

Necessary Connections 350,000$        350,000$        300,000$      600,000$        1,000,000$    (170,000)$         230,000$          770,000$              770,000$              

183A enhancements - connections 750,000$        750,000$        500,000$      2,000,000$    2,000,000$    500,000$          500,000$          1,500,000$          1,500,000$          

Sub-Tot 14,850,000$  19,000,000$  4,784,776$       8,934,776$       10,065,224$        

Rail Station

Rail Station Improvements 1,500,000$    1,500,000$    3,000,000$    3,000,000$    3,000,000$       3,000,000$       -$                      

Drainage - Detention

Regional Facilities 1,600,000$    1,600,000$    3,200,000$    3,200,000$    555,428$          555,428$          1,784,529$          860,043$      2,644,572$          

Ponds 325,000$        325,000$        650,000$        650,000$        112,121$          112,121$          362,955$              174,924$      537,879$              

Main Collectors 225,000$        225,000$        450,000$        450,000$        450,000$          450,000$          -$                      

Committed Funds*

Page 1 of 2



Leander TIRZ Project Plan

Phased Detention 135,000$        135,000$        270,000$        270,000$        270,000$          270,000$          -$                      

Offsite Facilities 1,500,000$    1,050,000$    2,550,000$    2,550,000$    2,550,000$       2,550,000$       -$                      

Property/Easements 350,000$        350,000$      700,000$        700,000$        700,000$          700,000$          -$                      

Water Quality (some overlap with Detention)

Treatment Facilities (BMPs) 790,000$        790,000$        1,580,000$    1,580,000$    280,126$          280,126$          877,141$              422,733$      1,299,874$          

Phased Treatment 125,000$        125,000$        100,000$      350,000$        350,000$        350,000$          350,000$          -$                      

Property/Easements 225,000$        225,000$        450,000$        450,000$        450,000$          450,000$          -$                      

Off-site Facilities 250,000$        250,000$        500,000$        500,000$        500,000$          500,000$          -$                      

Sub-Tot 10,700,000$  10,700,000$  6,217,675$       6,217,675$       4,482,325$          

Design Enhancements

Street Lighting 300,000$        300,000$        300,000$      900,000$        900,000$        162,208$          162,208$          680,000$              57,792$        737,792$              

Plazas/Features 300,000$        350,000$        300,000$      950,000$        950,000$        735,042$          735,042$          214,958$      214,958$              

Greenspace Treatments 300,000$        350,000$        300,000$      950,000$        950,000$        722,750$          722,750$          227,250$      227,250$              

Other (unique improvements that benefit the TOD) 200,000$        150,000$        100,000$      450,000$        450,000$        450,000$          450,000$          -$                      

Sub-Tot 3,250,000$    3,250,000$    2,070,000$       2,070,000$       1,180,000$          

6,600$          33,567$          1,530,260$    24,051,489$  24,830,000$  9,393,084$  Total 59,845,000$  59,845,000$  38,366,291$     38,366,291$     569,912$        1,197,052$        4,700,000$        1,445,000$         13,468,245$        4,220,374$  300,000$         (4,421,874)$  21,478,709$        

Notes:

** - The Crescent agreement provides for a portion of the water and wastewater impact fees collected from connections into the funded water and wastewater improvements to be paid to the TIRZ account to be used to fund the reimbursements.  These amounts are based on the total number of LUEs only within the Crescent property and at the impact fee rates as of October 2014

* - The committed amounts are maximum dollar amounts that are subject to any pro-rata cost calculations, multipliers, reductions or other stipulations in the approved reimbursement agreements.

Page 2 of 2



ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS AMENDING 
THE PROJECT AND FINANCING PLAN FOR THE REINVESTMENT 
ZONE NUMBER ONE TO REALLOCATE THE ESTIMATED 
PROJECT COSTS AMONG PROJECT CATEGORIES; TO UPDATE 
ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS AND THE ESTIMATED TIME 
WHEN PROJECT COSTS WILL BE INCURRED; ASSIGNING 
PROJECTS SUBJECT TO REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMNTS TO 
PROJECT CATEGORIES IN THE ZONE PLAN; ESTABLISHING 
THE OAK CREEK SUBACCOUNT IN THE TAX INCREMENT FUND; 
AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS 

 
WHEREAS, Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Leander, Texas (the "Zone") is a 

tax increment reinvestment zone created pursuant to Chapter 311, Texas Tax Code, as amended 
(the "Act"), by Ordinance No. 06-029-00 adopted by the City Council of the City (the "City 
Council" and the "City") on September 7, 2006, as amended by Ordinance No. 06-029-01 
adopted by the City Council on June 21, 2007 (the “Zone Creation Ordinance”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Zone Creation Ordinance adopted a project and financing plan pursuant 

to Section 311.011, Texas Tax Code, which was updated and supplemented by Ordinance 
Number 13-077-00 (the “Zone Plan”);  

 
WHEREAS, the Zone and the City Council have approved reimbursement agreements in 

which developers who are parties to those agreements are eligible to receive tax increment funds 
as reimbursement for the design and construction of certain public improvements that are eligible 
for reimbursement from tax increment funds under the Zone Plan and the applicable 
reimbursement agreement; 
 

WHEREAS, the Zone, the Authority, and the City considered the approval of that certain 
Oak Creek Development and Reimbursement Agreement dated October __, 2014 (the 
“Reimbursement Agreement”), in which the developer will be reimbursed for the design, 
construction, and installation of certain water, drainage, water quality control, transportation, and 
other public improvement projects that are described in Section 2 as the Public Improvement 
Projects, subject to the terms and conditions of the Reimbursement Agreement;  

 
WHEREAS, the Zone and the City desire to assign the Public Improvement Projects to 

project categories in the Zone Plan for the purpose of tracking the commitment of tax increment 
funds; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Zone and the City desire to amend the Zone Plan to reallocate estimated 

project costs among the projects categories, without increasing the total estimated project costs, 
update the estimated project costs and the estimated time when project costs will be incurred for 
the Zone Plan based on the approved reimbursement agreements applicable within the Zone; 
 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings.  The findings and recitations set out in this Ordinance are found to be 
true and correct and they are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all 
purposes.   
 
Section 2. Public Improvement Projects.  (a)  The public improvement projects described 
in Exhibit A are reasonable and necessary to provide adequate water, drainage, water quality 
control, transportation, and other public infrastructure for persons and property located within the 
Zone (the “Public Improvement Projects”).  The Public Improvement Projects are authorized by 
the Act, are consistent with the Zone Plan, and correspond to the categories of projects set forth 
in the Zone Plan, as follows: 
 
Public Improvement Project    Zone Plan Project Category     
(1)  West Broade Street Water Project Water – Necessary Connections 
(2)  South Brook Drive Water Project  Water – Necessary Connections 
(3)  Water Quality Basin “A”   Drainage—Detention and Water Quality – Regional  

Facilities/Ponds/Treatment Facilities (BMPs) 
(4)  Water Quality Basin “B”   Drainage—Detention and Water Quality – Regional  

Facilities/Ponds/Treatment Facilities (BMPs) 
   
(5)  Water Quality Basin “C”   Drainage—Detention and Water Quality – 

Ponds/Treatment Facilities (BMPs) 
       
(6)  Water Quality Basin “D”   Drainage—Detention and Water Quality – Regional  

Facilities/Ponds/Treatment Facilities (BMPs)  
(7)  West Broade Street   Transportation – Required Roadways 
(8)  South Brook Drive   Transportation – Required Roadways 
(9)  Enhanced Bridge Treatment  Transportation – Required Roadways 
(10) Design Enhancements   Design Enhancements –  

(a)  Primary Entry Feature     Plaza/Features 
(b)  Secondary Entry Feature     Plaza/Features 
(c)  Native Area Revegetation    Greenspace Treatments 
(d)  Lake Treatments      Plaza/Features 
(e)  Trailheads       Greenspace Treatments 

(11) Street Lighting       Street Lighting 
 
(b) No bonded indebtedness secured by tax increment revenue from the Zone is envisioned at 
this time to finance the design and construction of the Public Improvement Projects.   
 
Section 3.  Zone Plan.  The estimated project costs and estimated time when project costs 
will be incurred within the Zone, are hereby amended and updated as set forth in Exhibit B.  The 
estimated project costs that are assigned to particular developments, as shown on Exhibit B, 
reflect the maximum reimbursement that may be paid to a developer under an applicable 



reimbursement agreement; the actual reimbursements paid to a developer will be subject to the 
terms, conditions, and limitations of the applicable reimbursement agreement. 
   
Section 4. Sub Accounts Created. The Oak Creek Payment Account (the “Payment 
Account”) is hereby created and established as a sub-account of the Tax Increment Fund. The 
Payment Account shall be maintained for the period of time required under the Reimbursement 
Agreement, and a portion of the tax receipts shall be deposited into the Payment Account as 
provided in the Reimbursement Agreement.  
 
Section 5. Monetary Obligations.  It is estimated that the project costs for the Public 
Improvement Projects will be expended as follows:  2015: up to $4,208,175. 
 
Section 6. Amendment of Conflicting Ordinances.  The Zone Plan adopted under 
Ordinances 06-029-00, 06-029-01, and 13-077-00, is hereby amended to the extent of any 
conflict with this Ordinance.  In the event of a conflict between this Ordinance and another 
Ordinance of the City, this Ordinance shall control, provided that this Ordinance shall not change 
the terms, conditions, or limitations of any reimbursement agreement governing payment of tax 
increment revenue generated within the Zone. 
 
Section 7. Severability.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation of this ordinance of any 
such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section.  If any provision of this Ordinance shall 
be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision, 
and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 8. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
Section 9. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on this the ____ day of October 2014. 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
  



EXHIBIT A 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

 
(a) Water Projects: 

i. West Broade Street – The water line along West Broade Street consists of 
approximately 115 linear feet of 8-inch C-900 DR-14 PVC water line and 
approximately 2,680 linear feet of 12-inch C-900 DR-14 PVC water line 
generally shown in Exhibit A-1. 

ii. South Brook Drive – The water line along South Brook Drive consists of 
approximately 520 linear feet of 8-inch C-900 DR-14 PVC water line and 
approximately 2,430 linear feet of 12-inch C-900 DR-14 PVC water line, 
generally shown in Exhibit A-1. 

(b) Drainage-Detention Projects: 

i. Water Quality Basin “A” – Water Quality Basin “A” will be wet detention 
and water quality ponds that will also serve as a water feature amenity and will 
provide water quality for approximately 67.50 acres within the Property and 
approximately 6.61 acres of offsite area as generally shown in Exhibit A-2.  

ii. Water Quality Basin “B” – Water Quality Basin “B” will be wet detention 
and water quality ponds that will also serve as a water feature amenity and will 
provide water quality for approximately 12.10 acres within the Property and 
approximately 2.27 acres of offsite area as generally shown in Exhibit A-2.  

iii. Water Quality Basin “C” – Water Quality Basin “C” will be wet detention 
and water quality ponds that will also serve as a water feature amenity and will 
provide water quality for approximately 24.16 acres within the property. Water 
Quality Basin “C” was not designed to treat any offsite areas, as generally shown 
in Exhibit A-2.  

iv. Water Quality Basin “D” – Water Quality Basin “D” will be wet detention 
and water quality ponds that will also serve as a water feature amenity and will 
provide water quality for approximately 30.45 acres within the property and 
approximately 5.01 acres of offsite area as generally shown in Exhibit A-2. 

(c) Transportation Projects. 

i. W. Broade Street consists of the roadway improvements commencing at 
the intersection of West Broade Street and San Gabriel Parkway and continuing 
south through the property approximately 2,460 linear feet to the southern 
property boundary, generally shown in Exhibit A-3. 

ii. South Brook Drive consists of the roadway improvements commencing at 
the western boundary of the project and continuing east through the property 
approximately 2,690 linear feet to the eastern property boundary, generally shown 



in Exhibit A-3. 

iii.  Enhanced Bridge Treatment. The primary bridge structure will be faced with 
masonry veneer.  An ornamental pedestrian railing with masonry columns will 
adorn the bridge crossing.  The masonry and railing will complement the 
materials utilized at the Primary Entry Feature in order to provide a consistent 
appearance and theme.  The location of the bridge enhancement is generally 
shown in Exhibit A-3. 

(d) Design Enhancements.  The eligible Design Enhancements are shown on Exhibit 
A-4.  The Developer shall submit construction design, and/or landscaping plans, as 
appropriate at or before the time that the Developer submits construction plans for the 
phase in which the project or projects will be located and obtain the City Planning 
Director’s (or designee’s) approval of the proposed project and plans.  

 
  



EXHIBIT A-1 
Water Projects 

  



EXHIBIT A-2 
Drainage-Detention Projects 

  



EXHIBIT A-3 
Transportation Projects 

  



EXHIBIT A-4 
Design Enhancements  



 
EXHIBIT B 

ZONE PLAN 



AGENDA ITEM #  

 

 
Executive Summary 

October 13, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Consider the Oak Creek Development and Reimbursement Agreement. 
 
Background:   
The Oak Creek subdivision lies with the City of Leander Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #1 
(TIRZ) west of U.S. 183 and south of San Gabriel Blvd.  The project is projected to include 600 
housing units consisting of conventional single-family, alley-loaded single-family, townhomes 
and cluster condominiums.  The TIRZ project plan includes public improvements within the 
boundaries of the Oak Creek project.  The developer has requested reimbursement from TIRZ 
revenues for the improvements listed in the agreement in the maximum amount of $4,220,374.  
The improvements include water lines, roadways, water quality and detention, and design 
enhancements. 
 
This item was discussed by the Board at its June 2, 2014 meeting.  The reimbursement request 
was modified to reflect the Board's direction to reduce the total amount of reimbursements from 
the Design Enhancements category of the Project Plan. 
 
This item will be forwarded to City Council on October 16, 2014 with the TIRZ Board and 
Development Authority's recommendation. 
 
This agenda item approves the reimbursement agreement. 
     
Origination:  Applicant: Sentinel/Cotter Leander, LLC 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Reimbursement agreement 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
  



OAK CREEK LEANDER DEVELOPMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Oak Creek Leander Development and Reimbursement Agreement (the 
“Agreement”) is entered into effective when fully executed (the “Effective Date”), by the City 
of Leander, Texas (the “City”); the Leander Development Authority (the “Authority”); 
Sentinel/Cotter Leander, LLC (the “Developer”), a limited liability company; and 
Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Leander, Texas (the “Zone”).  The capitalized terms 
used in this Agreement have the meanings ascribed to them herein.  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City is a Texas home-rule municipal corporation; 

WHEREAS, the Authority is a non-profit corporation formed pursuant to Subchapter D, 
Chapter 431, Texas Transportation Code, and the City Charter of the City; 

WHEREAS, the Developer is a Texas limited liability company and owns approximately 
151 acres of property in Williamson County within the Zone and intends to develop it as a 
residential community in accordance with the Oak Creek PUD (the “Oak Creek Subdivision”) ; 

 WHEREAS the Zone is a tax increment reinvestment zone created pursuant to the 
authority of Chapter 311 , Texas Tax Code, as amended (the “Act”), by Ordinance No. 
06-029-00 adopted by the City Council of the City (the “City Council”) on September 7, 2006, 
as amended by Ordinance No. 06-029-01 adopted by the City Council on June 21 , 2007; 

WHEREAS, the City, the Authority, the Developer, and the Zone are individually 
referred to as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”; 

WHEREAS, the City executes this Agreement for limited purposes which are: (1) 
approving this Agreement as a contractual obligation of the Authority; (2) creating the 
Payment Account with respect to the Oak Creek Projects (the “Oak Creek Payment Account”) 
within the Tax Increment Fund and depositing the City Tax Increment Receipts and County 
Tax Increment Receipts into such Oak Creek Payment Account (3) overseeing the design, 
construction, and installation and City acceptance of the Oak Creek Projects; (4) approving the 
use of funds in the Oak Creek Payment Account by the Authority to reimburse the Developer 
for Oak Creek Project Costs; and (5) to hold the rights and obligations expressly set forth 
herein as rights and obligations of the City;  

WHEREAS, the Zone, acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”) executes 
this Agreement for limited purposes which are: (1) approving this Agreement as a contractual 
obligation of the Authority; (2) approving the creation of an Oak Creek Payment Account 
within the Tax Increment Fund and approving the deposits into such account in the Tax 
Increment Fund of the City Tax Increment Receipts and County Tax Increment Receipts; (3) 
approving the use of funds in the Oak Creek Payment Account by the Authority to reimburse 
the Developer for Oak Creek Project Costs; and (4) to hold the rights and obligations expressly 
set forth herein as rights and obligations of the Zone; 

WHEREAS, the City created the Authority to oversee the design, construction, and 
installation of the Oak Creek Projects that benefit development within the Zone, subject to the 



terms and conditions of this Agreement;   

WHEREAS, the City Council zoned the land within the Zone as the Leander 
Transportation Oriented Development District Planned Unit Development (the “TODD PUD”); 

WHEREAS, the City and the County have agreed that for the term of the Zone, fifty 
percent (50%) of their respective ad valorem taxes collected on the Captured Appraised Value 
of property within the Zone will be dedicated to the Zone; 

WHEREAS, the percentages of the funds dedicated to the Zone specified in this 
Agreement will be deposited into the Oak Creek Payment Account in the Tax Increment Fund 
and will be made available to the Authority to reimburse the Developer for costs paid or 
incurred to design, construct, and install Oak Creek Projects that are authorized by the Act and 
that implement the Project Plan as recommended by the Board and approved by the City 
Council, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; 

WHEREAS, by this Agreement, the Authority is contracting with the Developer to 
design, construct, and install the Oak Creek Projects on the Property that implement the Project 
Plan;  

WHEREAS, to facilitate the Developer's intended development of the Property in a 
market-competitive manner, the City Council created the Oak Creek Public Improvement 
District (“PID” or “District”) by Resolution No. 14-013-00 that includes the Property and that 
assists with the costs related to the design and construction of certain public improvements (as 
defined herein); and 

WHEREAS, if this Agreement is not fully executed within sixty (60) days after it is 
approved by the City Council of the City, it shall be null and void.  

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the above stated premises and the 
terms, conditions, and covenants set forth herein, the Parties contract, covenant, and agree as 
follows: 

ARTICLE 1  

INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Property. As of the Effective Date, the Developer owns approximately 151 acres 
described on Exhibit A attached hereto. The Property is located within the Zone and is located 
in the TODD PUD. In addition, the Property is located in the Oak Creek PID. 

 
1.2 Development of the Property. The Property will be developed in phases in accordance 
with the phasing plan approved by the City.  

 
1.3 Development Incentives. The Authority desires to promote development within the Zone 
by providing financial assistance for the design, construction, and installation of Oak Creek 
Projects that have been approved in the Project Plan. 

 
1.4 Requested Reimbursements. The Developer has requested the Authority reimburse the 



Developer for costs associated with the design, construction, and installation of those certain 
public improvements including facilities for water, water quality, and roadways described in 
Article 3 and also defined herein as the Oak Creek Projects and that have been approved in the 
Project Plan. 

 
1.5 Project Plan. The Board has recommended approval of, and the City Council has 
approved the construction, water, water quality, roadways, and other public improvements for 
Oak Creek that are eligible under the Act for reimbursement from the Zone. The Authority finds 
that such public improvements, the Oak Creek Projects described in Article 3, are authorized by 
the Act, are consistent with and included in the Project Plan, and are appropriate for 
reimbursement pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
1.6 Benefits. The Developer will benefit from being reimbursed certain costs and by virtue 
of the improved feasibility for the current development of the Property, the financial benefit of 
the reimbursements, the City services that will be made available to the Property, and the 
predictability regarding the City's regulations applicable to development. The Authority, the 
Zone, and the City will benefit from the construction of the Oak Creek Projects, the initial 
development within the TODD PUD, the enhancement of land values in properties that will be 
served by the Oak Creek Projects, and resulting tax revenues that the City and the County will 
realize. 
 
1.7 Consideration. The benefits to the Parties, plus the mutual promises expressed herein, 
are good and valuable consideration for this Agreement, the sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged by the Parties. 

1.8 Term. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and continue until 
the earlier of: (1) the date the Zone is terminated; or (2) the date on which the Developer has 
been reimbursed for the Oak Creek Project Costs as provided in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 2 

DEFINITIONS 

2.1 Applicable Regulations means (1) this Agreement; (2) all federal statutes and 
regulations, as amended; (3) all statutes and the Constitution of the State of Texas, as amended 
(including, but not limited to, Article Ill, Section 52-a of the Texas Constitution, Section 
380.001 of the Texas Local Government Code, and Chapter 311 and Section 351.101 of the 
Texas Tax Code), as amended from time to time; (4) the City's Smart Code in effect on July 17, 
2014, and any amendments thereto that apply to the Property pursuant to Chapter 245, Texas 
Local Government Code; (5) the Oak Creek PUD; (6) to the extent not in conflict with this 
Agreement, all other City ordinances, as amended; and (7) all rules and regulations of the Texas 
Department of Transportation, as amended. 

2.2  Captured Appraised Value means, for a taxing unit, the total taxable value of real 
property by the unit and located in the Zone for a given year less the total taxable value of which 
real property taxable by the unit and located in the Zone for the year in which the Zone was 
created.  

2.3  City Tax Increment Receipts means: 80% of [(50% of the ad valorem taxes collected 



and received by the City on the Captured Appraised Value of the Property)] minus the Zone 
Administrative Expenses].   

2.4 County means Williamson County, Texas. 

2.5 County Participation Agreement means the Amended Tax Increment Financing 
Agreement effective August 8, 2006, by and between the City and the County, as amended. 

2.6 County Tax Increment Receipts mean [80% of [(50% of the ad valorem taxes collected 
and received by the County on the Captured Appraised Value of the Property) minus the Zone 
Administrative Expenses].  

2.7 Design Enhancements mean the projects described in Section 3.1(d). 

2.8 Drainage – Detention Projects means the projects described in section 3.1(b).   

2.9 Estimated Total for Each Category of the Oak Creek Projects means estimated costs to 
construct each category of the Oak Creek Projects.   There are four categories of Oak Creek 
Projects, which are: (a) the Water Projects; (b) the Drainage-Detention Projects; (c) the 
Transportation Projects; and (d) the Design Enhancements.  The Estimated Total for Each 
Category of the Oak Creek Projects is set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein for all purposes; provided that the Estimated Total for the Design Enhancement is defined 
in Section 2.10. 

2.10 Estimated Total for the Design Enhancements means the lower of the sum of the 
estimated project costs shown in Table IV, Exhibit B for the projects that are approved under 
Section 3.1(d), or $500,000. 

2.11 Estimated Total for the Drainage-Detention Projects means the estimated total for the 
projects shown in Table II, Exhibit B. 

2.12 Estimated Total for the Transportation Projects means the estimated total shown in Table 
III, Exhibit B. 

2.13 Estimated Total for the Water Projects means the estimated total shown in Table I, 
Exhibit B. 

2.14 HOA-Maintained Improvements mean the Primary Entry Feature, the Secondary Entry 
Feature, the Native Area Revegetation, and the Lake Treatments, which are respectively 
described in Table IV(a), (b), (c), and (d) of Exhibit B and Exhibit C-4. 

2.15 Initial Payment means the initial reimbursement payment to Developer as described in 
Section 4.7(c). 

2.16 Oak Creek Planned Unit Development (“Oak Creek PUD”) means the zoning applied to 
the Project pursuant to Ordinance No. 14-039-00 approved on July 17, 2014. 

2.17 Oak Creek Payment Account means a separate account established by the City and the 
Zone within the Tax Increment Fund for the deposit of the City Tax Increment Receipts and the 
County Tax Increment Receipts, and from which the Authority will reimburse the Developer for 



Oak Creek Project Costs specified in this Agreement.  

2.18 Oak Creek Projects means the improvements described in Section 3.1. 

2.19 Oak Creek Project Costs is defined in Section 5.1. 

2.20 PID Improvements means the public improvements that are financed and funded by the 
Oak Creek PID. 

2.21 Project Plan means that certain Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan as 
recommended by the Board of Directors of the Zone and approved by the City Council on 
October 5, 2006, and as modified upon recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Zone 
on December 16, 2013, and approved by the City Council by Ordinance No. 13-077-00 adopted 
December 19, 2013, and as further modified upon recommendation of the Board of Directors of 
the Zone on October 13, 2014, and approved by the City Council by Ordinance No. _____ 
adopted October 16, 2014.  

2.22 Subdivision Improvements means those improvements and facilities necessary to 
develop the Property as more particularly described in Section 3.2. 

2.23 Smart Code means the zoning regulations that govern development within the TODD 
PUD adopted by Ordinance Number 05-028-00, and amended by Ordinance Number 14-042-00. 

2.24 Tax Increment Fund means the tax increment fund required by the Act into which the ad 
valorem taxes levied and collected by the City and the County on the Captured Appraised Value 
is to be deposited. 

2.25 TCEQ means the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, or successor agency. 

2.26 Transportation Projects mean the projects described in Section 3.1(c). 

2.27 Water Projects mean the projects described in Section 3.1(a). 

2.28 Zone Administrative Expenses mean the administration costs set forth in the Project 
Plan. 

ARTICLE 3 

OAK CREEK PROJECTS 

3.1 Oak Creek Projects. The Oak Creek Projects for which the Developer will be eligible for 
reimbursement, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement are the improvements 
described in this section: 

 

(a) Water Projects: 

i. West Broade Street – The water line along West Broade Street consists of 
approximately 115 linear feet of 8-inch C-900 DR-14 PVC water line and 



approximately 2,680 linear feet of 12-inch C-900 DR-14 PVC water line, 
extending from San Gabriel Parkway to the extension of West Broade Street, 
generally shown in Exhibit C-1, attached hereto and incorporated herein. Water 
improvements will include approximately three 8-inch gate valves, approximately 
eight 12-inch gate valves, approximately four fire hydrants, and approximately 
one air release valve. 

ii. South Brook Drive – The water line along South Brook Drive consists of 
approximately 520 linear feet of 8-inch C-900 DR-14 PVC water line and 
approximately 2,430 linear feet of 12-inch C-900 DR-14 PVC water line, 
extending from the existing stub of South Brook Drive to the future extension of 
South Brook Drive, generally shown in Exhibit C-1, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein. Water improvements will include approximately three 8-inch 
gate valves, approximately 5 12-inch gate valves, approximately six fire hydrants, 
and approximately one air release valve. 

(b) Drainage-Detention Projects: 

i. Water Quality Basin “A” – Water Quality Basin “A” provides water 
quality for approximately 67.50 acres within the Property and approximately 6.61 
acres of offsite area as generally shown in Exhibit C-2, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein.  

ii. Water Quality Basin “B” – Water Quality Basin “B” provides water 
quality for approximately 12.10 acres within the Property and approximately 2.27 
acres of offsite area as generally shown in Exhibit C-2, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein.  

iii. Water Quality Basin “C” – Water Quality Basin “C” provides water 
quality for approximately 24.16 acres within the property. Water Quality Basin 
“C” was not designed to treat any offsite areas, as generally shown in Exhibit 
C-2, attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

iv. Water Quality Basin “D” – Water Quality Basin “D” provides water 
quality for approximately 30.45 acres within the property and approximately 5.01 
acres of offsite area as generally shown in Exhibit C-2, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein.  

v. Design Standards for Drainage-Detention Ponds.  The 
Drainage-Detention Projects will be wet detention and water quality ponds that 
will also serve as a water feature amenities to the Oak Creek Subdivision, as 
generally shown construction plans entitled Oak Creek Phase 1, Street & 
Drainage, Water & Wastewater Improvements and submitted to the City on June 
6, 2014 (the “Plans”).  (The Plans are being referenced for the purpose of 
describing the general nature and character of the improvements as a wet 
detention and water quality pond.  Reference to the Plans herein does not 
constitute approval of such Plans.)  The Drainage-Detention Quality Projects will 
be designed and constructed in accordance with the TCEQ in order to remove a 
minimum of 80% of the increase in Total Suspended Solids (TSS) and this 



Agreement. 

(c) Transportation Projects. 

i. W. Broade Street consists of the roadway improvements commencing at 
the intersection of West Broade Street and San Gabriel Parkway and continuing 
south through the property approximately 2,460 linear feet to the southern 
property boundary, generally shown in Exhibit C-3, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein. West Broade Street shall be designed and constructed as a 
two lane local street with a forty foot pavement width and a sixty foot 
right-of-way width. 

ii. South Brook Drive consists of the roadway improvements commencing at 
the western boundary of the project and continuing east through the property 
approximately 2,690 linear feet to the eastern property boundary, generally shown 
in Exhibit C-3, attached hereto and incorporated herein. South Brook Drive shall 
be designed and constructed as a two lane local street with a forty foot pavement 
width and a sixty foot right-of-way width. 

iii.  Enhanceed Bridge Treatment – The primary bridge structure will be faced 
with masonry veneer.  An ornamental pedestrian railing with masonry columns 
will adorn the bridge crossing.  The masonry and railing will complement the 
materials utilized at the Primary Entry Feature in order to provide a consistent 
appearance and theme. 

(d) Design Enhancements.  The Developer is eligible to receive reimbursements 
from the Oak Creek Payment Account for projects that are generally shown and described 
in Table IV of Exhibit B and Exhibit C-4, attached hereto and incorporated herein, up to 
the Estimated Total for the Design Enhancements.  The Developer shall submit 
construction design, and/or landscaping plans, as appropriate at or before the time that the 
Developer submits construction plans for the phase in which the project or projects will 
be located and obtain the City Planning Director’s (or designee’s) approval of the 
proposed project and plans.  The projects approved in writing by the City’s Planning 
Director in accordance with this subsection 3.1(d), as shown on the approved plans, shall 
constitute the Design Enhancements.   The Design Enhancements shall meet or exceed 
the Conventional District Sector landscaping requirements set forth in the Smart Code.  

3.2 Subdivision Improvements.   

(a) The subdivision improvements are all required water facilities, wastewater 
facilities streets, drainage facilities and other amenities and improvements that are 
required by regulatory authorities with jurisdiction over the Property to serve individual 
lots within the Property, and do not include the Oak Creek Projects.  

(b) The Developer shall not receive any rebate or contribution from the City or the 
Authority for any part or portion of the Subdivision Improvements.  The Developer 
shall, at the Developer's expense, design, construct, and complete the Subdivision 
Improvements determines in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by 
the City, the Applicable Regulations, and good engineering practices. 



ARTICLE 4 

REIMBURSEMENT OF OAK CREEK PROJECT COSTS 

4.1 Oak Creek Project Costs. Subject to the terms, limitations, and provisions of this 
Agreement, and the Developer's full and timely performance of, and compliance with, each of 
the requirements set forth in this Agreement, the Authority shall reimburse the Developer for the 
actual, documented costs and expenses paid or incurred by the Developer to design, construct, 
and install the Oak Creek Projects, up to a maximum of the Estimated Total for Each Category 
of the Oak Creek Projects.  

4.2 Combined Totals Not Exceed Cost; Consent Not Required. The actual cost to design, 
construct, and install a particular project may exceed or be less than the estimated project costs 
shown for each of the Oak Creek Projects in Exhibit B, and an amendment to this Agreement 
will not be required to adjust such estimated project costs; provided that notwithstanding any 
provision to the contrary herein, if the total actual costs to design, construct, and install the Oak 
Creek Projects exceeds the Estimated Total for Each Category of the Oak Creek Projects, the 
excess is not reimbursable without the consent of the City, the Authority, and the Zone.  For 
example, if the actual cost to design, construct and install the West Broade Street Water Project 
exceeds the Estimated Project Cost for said project set forth in Table I(a), Exhibit B, the 
Developer may apply to be reimbursed for the actual project costs provided that Developer 
submits an update to Table I as required in Section 4.7(b) and provided further that Developer 
shall not be reimbursed for any amounts that exceed the Estimated Total for Water Projects, 
without the written consent of the City, the Authority, and the Zone.   

4.3 Oak Creek Payment Account. The City shall create and maintain the Oak Creek Payment 
Account as a separate and segregated account within the Tax Increment Fund, which shall be 
invested in the same manner as other municipal funds with interest added to the balance). The 
City shall not comingle the Oak Creek Payment Account with any other funds of the City and 
shall not allow the Oak Creek Payment Account to be used for any purposes except as provided 
by this Agreement. 

4.4 Deposits. The City shall deposit the City Tax Increment Receipts and County Tax 
Increment Receipts into the Oak Creek Payment Account no less frequently than quarterly for 
the earlier to occur of (a) the term of the Zone; (b) the Oak Creek Projects Costs are reimbursed 
in full, up to a maximum of the Estimated Total for each Category of the Oak Creek Projects; or 
(c) the termination of this Agreement.  

4.5 Quarterly Accounting. The Oak Creek Payment Account will be used to reimburse the 
Developer for Oak Creek Project Costs. The City and the Authority shall provide to the 
Developer a quarterly accounting (certified by the City Manager of the City and by the Board of 
Directors of the Authority) of all deposits into and disbursements from the Oak Creek Payment 
Account and shall otherwise maintain complete books and records with respect to such deposits 
and disbursements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as applied to 
Texas municipalities. 

4.6 Acceptance. Following the completion of each Oak Creek Project and upon written 
notice from the Developer, the City shall accept the completed a project if the project complies 
with the Applicable Regulations and this Agreement in accordance with this Section:  



(a) The Developer will dedicate the Water Utility Projects, the Drainage-Detention 
Projects, the Transportation Projects, and the Trailheads and Street Lighting respectively 
described in Table IV(e) and (m) of Exhibit B and Exhibit C-4 (if constructed) to the City 
upon completion of said projects, and the City will accept dedication of such projects after 
confirming that the projects have been completed in accordance with this Agreement and 
after receiving the documents and information required by the Applicable Regulations.  
With respect to the Street Lighting, the Developer will also be required to submit an 
executed license agreement, in the City’s standard format, prior to the City’s acceptance of 
the projects.   

(b) With respect to the Primary Entry Feature, the Secondary Entry Feature, the Native 
Area Revegetation, and the Lake Treatments, which are respectively described in Table 
IV(a), (b), (c), and (d) of Exhibit B and Exhibit C-4, if constructed, the Developer will 
grant the City an easement in a form acceptable to the City granting the City and the public 
the right of access to and use of such projects.  The Developer shall further enter into a 
restrictive covenant agreement with the City in a form substantially similar to that set forth 
in Exhibit D. The easement and restrictive covenant agreement required in this subsection 
shall be granted to the City prior to or at the time the final plat for the phase in which the 
Public Improvement is located is submitted to the City, and will be a condition of final plat 
approval.  

4.7 Reimbursement. (a) The City shall issue written confirmation to the Developer that the 
project has been accepted upon request. Upon acceptance of a Project, the Developer shall 
submit to the Authority evidence (in form reasonably acceptable to the Authority) of the actual 
costs paid or incurred by the Developer for the Project Costs to which the Developer is entitled 
to be reimbursed. The Developer shall keep records of all contracts, change orders payment 
applications, and pay requests made in connection with the design and construction of the Oak 
Creek Projects. 

(b) In the event that the actual costs of designing, constructing, and installing an Oak 
Creek Project exceeds or is less than the Estimated Project Costs for such project set 
forth in Exhibit B, at the time that the Developer applies for reimbursement under this 
Section 4.7, the Developer shall submit an update to the estimated project costs for all of 
the projects in the category in which the project for which reimbursement is sought is 
located, showing to which project the cost overruns or cost underruns shall be 
reallocated for future reimbursement allocations.  In no event shall the updated estimate 
cause the Estimated Total for the particular category of Oak Creek Projects to increase. 

(c) The Authority shall have 60 days to verify the Project Costs or to notify the 
Developer in writing of the Authority's objections to the Developer's request for 
reimbursement (and the failure of the Authority to do so within such 60-day period shall 
constitute verification of the costs as presented by the Developer). If the Authority 
verifies (or is deemed to have verified) that the Developer paid or incurred the Project 
Costs, then to the extent funds are available, the Authority shall reimburse the Developer 
for the verified costs within 30 days in the amount up to, but not exceeding, the verified 
Project Costs for the particular project for which reimbursement is requested, provided 
that the Estimated Total for the particular Category of Oak Creek Projects shall not be 
exceeded, taking into account all prior payments to Developer for projects within that 
category (the "Initial Payment"). After an Initial Payment, to the extent funds are 



available in the Payment Account and if the verified Project Costs have not been 
reimbursed in full by an Initial Payment, then the Authority shall make payments to 
reimburse the Developer for such verified Project Costs on or before the thirtieth (30th) 
day following the end of each calendar quarter (March 31, June 30, September 30, and 
December 31 ) of each year until the earlier to occur of: (i) the verified Project Costs 
having been paid in full; (ii) the Authority has made payments equal to the Estimated 
Total for the particular category for which payment is sought; or (iii) this Agreement has 
terminated or expired.  

(d) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the City will not 
release any reimbursements for the Oak Creek Projects until the Developer has 
submitted and obtained approval by the City of construction plans for all of the Oak 
Creek Projects and the PID Improvements. 

4.8 Oak Creek Payment Account. The Oak Creek Payment Account shall be used to 
reimburse Oak Creek Project Costs in the order determined by the Developer, provided that the 
Developer notifies the City in writing of the desired order. Upon the earlier to occur of: (i) all 
Oak Creek Project Costs having been paid in full for all Oak Creek Projects, up to a maximum 
of the Estimated Total for each Category of the Oak Creek Projects; (ii) the payment in full of 
an amount equal to the Estimated Total for Each Category of the Oak Creek Projects; or (iii) the 
termination of this Agreement, the City may terminate the Oak Creek Payment Account, and use 
the City Tax Increment Receipts unencumbered by this Agreement, and the County may use the 
County Tax Increment Receipts unencumbered by this Agreement. 

4.9 Representation Regarding the Tax Increment Receipts. The City, the Authority, and the 
Zone each represent and warrant to the Developer that, to the best knowledge and belief of each 
of them, no person or entity has any right, title, or interest in the City Tax Increment Receipts 
and County Tax Increment Receipts. Each of the City, the Authority, and the Zone further 
represent and warrant to the Developer that, to their best knowledge and belief, entering into this 
Agreement will not constitute a breach of or otherwise violate any agreement to which they are 
a party or by which they are bound. 

4.10 PID Reimbursements. The Developer shall not seek or accept reimbursement from the 
PID for any of the Oak Creek Projects.  The Developer shall further not seek or accept 
reimbursement from the Zone for any projects for which the Developer is entitled to be 
reimbursed from the PID. 

4.11 Suspension of Reimbursements. Notwithstanding any other term or provision of this 
Agreement, no reimbursement shall be made to Developer at a time when Developer is 
delinquent in the payment of ad valorem taxes to either the City or· the County. For so long as 
such delinquencies by Developer remain unpaid (including interest, penalties, and costs of 
collection), reimbursements by the Authority to Developer· shall be suspended until the 
delinquencies are fully paid. This provision does not apply to ad valorem taxes that are due but 
not yet delinquent. A developer shall not be considered “delinquent” if exercising its rights to 
protest valuation. 

ARTICLE 5 

PROJECT COSTS; ENGINEERING REQUIREMENTS 



5.1 The Oak Creek Project Costs for each of the Oak Creek Projects set forth in Article 4, 
include costs for the following: 

(a) hard construction costs;  

(b) surveying costs; 

(c) the cost of soils and materials testing;  

(d) engineering fees relating to the Project;  

(e) any other necessary and reasonable out-of-pocket costs expended by the 
Developer in connection with the design, construction, and installation of the Oak 
Creek Projects, including the cost of any necessary land and rights-of-way located 
outside the boundaries of the Property; 

(f) legal fees and professional costs paid to the Authority in conjunction with 
the negotiation and execution of this Agreement; 

(g) plan review, approval, and inspection fees paid to any governmental 
agency having jurisdiction to review the plans and construction of a Oak Creek 
Projects, that are charged and paid for review and inspection of Oak Creek 
Projects. 

All such sums and amounts shall be documented to and approved by the Authority upon 
completion and final acceptance by the City of each Oak Creek Project, for the purposes of 
determining the final agreed amount eligible for reimbursement to Developer under this 
Agreement. 

5.2 Developer Payment of Costs. All Oak Creek Project Costs, as well as the costs of the 
Subdivision Improvements, shall be paid by the Developer as they become due. The Authority 
shall not bear any part or portion of such costs. 

5.3 Developer Financing. The Developer shall secure the financing for, and shall design, 
construct, and install the Oak Creek Projects and Subdivision Improvements in accordance with 
this Agreement.  

5.4 Bid Requirements. The Developer shall obtain written bids and at least three (3) bid 
sheets submitted by independent, qualified contractors for the construction of each Oak Creek 
Project. Public bidding in compliance with the Municipal Purchasing Act is not required, but 
written bids are required to be obtained and accepted in a fair and impartial manner with three 
(3) or more interested, prospective bidders having been provided equal access to plans, 
specifications, and information. The Parties acknowledge that the Oak Creek Projects may, in 
some cases, be built in conjunction with Subdivision Improvements that are not subject to 
reimbursement under this Agreement. Developer will have each bid proposal separately identify 
or itemize the construction costs for Oak Creek Projects and Subdivision Improvements. 

5.5 City Engineer Bid Approval. The City Engineer will timely review and approve all bids 
and contracts for the construction of Oak Creek Projects for compliance with the Applicable 
Regulations. Subject to change orders approved by the City Engineer for such compliance, the 



actual Oak Creek Project Costs paid or incurred by the Developer will determine the amount 
reimbursed to the Developer pursuant to this Agreement; provided that the amount reimbursed 
to Developer shall not exceed the Estimated Project Costs for Each Category of the Oak Creek 
Projects. Provided written bids are obtained and the contractor selection is made in a manner as 
not to discourage future competition and competitive bids, the selection of the contractor will be 
at the sole discretion of the Developer. The Developer will award all construction contracts. The 
Oak Creek Projects shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the plans and 
specifications approved by the City, the Applicable Rules, and good engineering practices. 

5.6 Developer Reports and Records. The Developer will make quarterly reports to the City 
Engineer on the amounts paid to contractors for each Oak Creek Project and will maintain 
accounts in a manner that separately reflects payments subject to reimbursement under this 
Agreement. 

5.7 City Engineer Responsibilities. The City Engineer will: (1) make recommendations to 
and advise the Authority on the award of construction contracts by the Developer; (2) make 
quarterly reports to the Authority on the progress of construction; (3) review and make 
recommendations to the Authority on the final, as-built Oak Creek Project Costs; and (4) 
periodically inspect the Oak Creek Projects during construction. No changes to the plans and 
specifications or change orders to the construction contracts pertaining to a Project may be made 
without the approval of the City Engineer. The City Engineer will reasonably cooperate with the 
Developer and the Developer's project engineer and will keep the Developer’s project engineer 
fully advised of the City Engineer's findings regarding the bidding process and the construction 
of the Oak Creek Projects. 

5.8 Record Drawings. Upon completion of construction of each Project, the Developer must 
provide the Authority with final, “record” drawings in a form approved by the City Engineer. 

5.9 Required Certificates. Upon Completion of construction of each Project, the Developer's 
engineer must provide the City with a certificate or completion certifying that the construction 
of the Oak Creek Project has been completed in accordance with the plans and specifications 
approved by the City Engineer and that the required “record” drawings have been provided. 

5.10 Eligible Costs. The Developer will work and coordinate with the Authority and the City 
Engineer to assure that actual Oak Creek Project Costs are accurately and truly identified and 
agreed between the Parties as eligible for reimbursement under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 6 

PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND PERFORMANCE 

6.1 Other Authority Agreements. The City and the Authority hereby further agree as 
follows: 

(a) Building Permits. The City and the Authority will coordinate and facilitate the 
issuance of building permits for buildings to be constructed within a phase of the 
subdivision for which a final plat has been approved based on the City having either 
accepted (i) the completed Subdivision Improvements and Oak Creek Projects for such 
phase or (ii) adequate fiscal surely for the Subdivision Improvements and Oak Creek 



Projects for such phase meeting the requirements of the Applicable Regulations; provided 
the permit applicant is not in default under this Agreement and that be application does 
not commit the Authority to request the City to waive otherwise applicable requirements 
that on-site and off-site infrastructure for the approved plat must be accepted by the City 
prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the completed 
building.  Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, no final plat for 
any portion of the Property that contains single family residential lots will be approved 
until the Oak Creek Projects and the PID Improvements are complete.  
 

(b) Authorized Coordination. The Authority will, as appropriate, authorize the City 
Engineer to coordinate with the Developer's engineer in a timely manner on specific 
design requirements, plans, and specifications for the Oak Creek Projects and 
Subdivision Improvements. 

(c) Plan Approval. The City Engineer shall review and approve, on behalf of the 
Authority, all plans for the construction of Oak Creek Projects. 

(d) Required City Engineer Approvals. All approvals of Oak Creek Projects and the 
plans and specifications therefore by the City Engineer shall be based compliance with 
the Applicable Regulations and this Agreement, and no approvals shall be unreasonably 
denied, withheld, conditioned, or delayed. 

6.2 Permits and Approvals. The City Engineer shall cooperate with the Developer as 
appropriate and take necessary, reasonable, and appropriate actions on a timely basis to assist 
the Developer in obtaining any permits, licenses, or other approvals from the City, the County, 
TxDOT, TCEQ, or any other regulatory authority required for the construction of the Oak Creek 
Projects and the Subdivision Improvements.  

6.3 Fill Materials. The Developer shall have the right, subject to the approval of the City 
Engineer, to remove soil and limestone required, if necessary, to construct and to use such 
materials as fill within the Property. 

6.4 Bid Approval. The City Engineer shall review and act upon approving bids for 
construction of the Oak Creek Projects within a reasonable time. 

6.5 Change Orders and Inspections. During the construction of the Oak Creek Projects, the 
City Engineer shall review, approve, and sign, as appropriate, any necessary change orders 
exceeding $100,000 within a reasonable time, not to exceed (30) days; provided that no change 
order (regardless of the amount) shall change the character or nature of any Oak Creek Project.  
A change order that changes the character or nature of an Oak Creek Project must be approved 
by the Authority, the Zone, and the City.  A change order that changes the character or nature 
of an Oak Creek Project shall cause that project to be ineligible for reimbursements under this 
Agreement, unless such change order is approved by the Authority, the Zone, and the City. The 
City Engineer shall also cause all inspections of Oak Creek Projects to be completed within a 
reasonable time and final acceptance of completed Oak Creek Projects within thirty (30) days or 
a request for final acceptance if the projects have been constructed in substantial accordance 
with approved plans and specifications. 



6.6 Project Acceptance. After completion of construction of Oak Creek Projects and 
Subdivision Improvements in accordance with the Applicable Regulations and this Agreement, 
the City Engineer shall approve and cause the acceptance of the Oak Creek Projects and 
Subdivision Improvements that comply with this Agreement by the City Council in a timely 
manner. 

6.7 Submittal Review. The City Engineer shall conduct a timely review of all submittals by 
the Developer as each submittal is made, and the City and the Authority will review such 
submittals individually. 

6.8 Perform Under Agreement. The City, the Authority, and the Zone agree to perform their 
respective duties and obligations under this Agreement in a timely manner, including 
reimbursement by the authority to the Developer of Oak Creek Project Costs as provided by this 
Agreement. 

6.9 Other Developer Agreements. The Developer hereby further agrees: 

(a) Payment of Fees. To pay to the Authority, the Zone, and the City all fees and 
charges provided for or established by the Applicable Regulations for or with respect to 
the development of the Property; 

(b) Dedication. Upon completion of the Oak Creek Projects and Subdivision 
Improvements, to dedicate to the City, for ownership, operation, and maintenance, the 
Oak Creek Projects as provided in Section 4.6 and, to the extent required by Applicable 
Regulations, the Subdivision Improvements, if constructed in substantial accordance 
with the Applicable Regulations;  

(c) Fiscal.  As a condition of obtaining final plat approval, either complete the 
Subdivision Improvements and the Oak Creek Projects that will serve the property 
within the final plat or post fiscal surety for the such improvements and projects that 
meets the requirements of the Applicable Regulations. 

(d) Timely Coordination. To coordinate with the City Engineer with respect to 
specific design requirements and specifications and with respect to the review and 
approval by the City Engineer of the plans and specifications for the Oak Creek Projects 
and the Subdivision Improvements in a timely manner; 

(e) Timely Applications. To make, or cause the Developer's engineer to make, timely 
requests for reviews, approvals, and permits accompanied by documents, plans and 
specifications compliant with Applicable Regulations; and 

(f) Perform Under Agreement. To perform in a timely manner all applicable duties 
and obligations of the Developer as provided in this Agreement. 

6.10  Home Owner’s Association. 
 
(a)  The Developer will create one or more home owners associations for the Property 
(collectively the “Owner’s Association”), and shall establish bylaws, rules, regulations 
and restrictive covenants (collectively the “Association Regulations”) to assure the 



Owner’s Association performs and accomplishes the duties and purposes required to be 
performed and accomplished by the Owner’s Association pursuant to this Section. The 
Owner’s Association will have binding, continuing responsibility for the maintenance, 
repair and operation of the HOA-Maintained Improvements (the “Maintenance 
Obligation”).  The HOA’s Maintenance Obligation shall be noted on the plat and in the 
restrictive covenants filed of record for the subdivision.  The owner of each lot within 
the Property shall be required to be a member of the Owner’s Association, and unpaid 
dues or assessments shall be and constitute a lien on the lot for which they are assessed; 
provided that such lien will be subordinate to liens created by levy of the Special 
Assessments. The Association Regulations will establish periodic Owner’s Association 
dues and assessments, to be charged and paid by the lot owners in within the Property, 
that are and will be sufficient to maintain the HOA-Maintained Improvements.  The 
Association Regulations will require the periodic dues and assessments to be increased 
from time to time as necessary to provide the funds required for the maintenance of the 
HOA-Maintained Improvements, and to provide funds required for the management and 
operation of the Association.  The Association Regulations shall give the City authority 
to judicially enforce the covenants requiring the Maintenance Obligation and shall 
provide for the City to recover any attorney’s fees and expenses incurred in judicial 
enforcement.  The Association Regulations shall be subject to the City’s approval.   
Compliance with this section shall be a condition of final plat approval. 

 
(b) The Owners’ Association dues and assessments required to be established, 
maintained and collected by the Owners’ Association pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
in addition to, and not in lieu of, any and all other fees, charges and assessments that will 
be applicable to the Property. 
 
(c)  The Owners’ Association shall execute a license agreement using the City’s 
standard form obligating the Owners’ Association to maintain the HOA-Maintained 
Improvements within thirty (30) days of the creation of the Owner’s Association. 

 

6.11 Natural Resource Regulations. The Developer further agrees that the Oak Creek Projects 
and the Subdivision Improvements will be constructed in compliance with the applicable state 
and federal natural resource and environmental laws, rules, and regulations, including, but not 
limited to, the following, to the extent, if any, they may be or become applicable. The Developer 
is not, however, responsible for water quality problems that are the result of surface water that 
originates outside the Property. 

ARTICLE 7 

EMINENT DOMAIN 

The Authority agrees to cooperate and facilitate with the City for the City to provide 
reasonable use of all necessary City lands, rights-of-way, and easements and to provide further 
required easements or lands in fee simple as may be necessary for construction of Oak Creek 
Projects, save and except for any such land and easements within the Property. It is 
acknowledged that there exists a public necessity for the Oak Creek Projects, that the Oak Creek 
Projects will be Authority projects for the benefit of the Zone and the City, and that the 
Authority agrees to work, cooperate, and facilitate with the City to cause the City to use its 



power of eminent domain to acquire such lands or easements, if necessary. The Developer shall 
pay the reasonable costs of any eminent domain proceeding that is initiated under the terms of 
this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 8 

ASSIGNMENT 

8.1 Assignment by Developer. This Agreement may be assigned in whole or in part, by the 
Developer to any person or entity that is approved by the City (an “Assignee” and the 
“Assignment”). The Assignment shall be in writing and shall obligate the Assignee to be bound 
by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Assignment shall not be effective until a 
fully executed copy is provided to the City. The form of the Assignment shall be approved by 
the City Attorney prior to its execution. From and after the effective date of the Assignment, the 
City, the Authority, and the Zone agree to look solely to the Assignee for the performance of all 
duties and obligations that are assigned and agree that the Developer-assignor shall be 
unconditionally and irrevocably released from all such duties and obligations and from all 
liability under this Agreement whether such liability arose prior to or after the effective date of 
the Assignment. The City shall have thirty (30) days to approve or refuse to approve any 
proposed Assignee identified by the Developer in writing, and the failure of the City to do so 
within such thirty (30) day period shall constitute an approval. The City shall not unreasonably 
withhold, condition, or delay its approval of any proposed Assignee. If the City refuses to 
approve an Assignee, such refusal shall be in writing, shall set forth the basis for the refusal, 
shall be signed by the City Manager of the City, and shall be delivered to the Developer assignor 
within such thirty (30) day period. The City shall maintain as confidential all information 
regarding any proposed Assignee until a copy of the Assignment is delivered to the City; only to 
the extent that doing so is authorized under the Texas Public Information Act (Chapter 552, 
Texas Government Code, as amended (the “Texas Public Information Act”)), and release of 
information regarding a proposed Assignee in compliance with the Texas Public information 
Act shall not be deemed a breach of this Agreement.  

8.2 Memorandum of Agreement. The Parties agree to execute and record a “Memorandum 
of Agreement” regarding this Agreement, the form of which memorandum shall be determined 
by the City, and which shall be recorded within sixty (60) days after the date the execution of 
this agreement. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Parties agree to execute and record an 
appropriate release of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties, their 
successors and assigns. 

ARTICLE 9 

DEFAULT; REMEDIES 

9.1 Notice; Cure; Default. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no Party shall be 
deemed to be in default under this Agreement until the passage of sixty (60) business days after 
receipt by such Party of notice of default from the other Party (“Cure Period”), which notice 
shall specify, in reasonable detail, the nature of the default. Upon the passage of the Cure Period 
without cure of the default, such Party shall be deemed to have defaulted for purposes of this 
Agreement; provided that, if the nature of the default is such that it cannot reasonably be cured 
within the Cure Period, the Party receiving the notice of default may during such Cure Period 



give the other Party written notice that it has commenced cure within the Cure Period and will 
diligently and continuously prosecute the cure to completion as soon as reasonably possible, and 
such written notice together with diligent and continuous prosecution of the cure shall extend 
the Cure Period for up to an additional ninety (90) calendar days so long as the cure is being 
diligently and continuously pursued during such time; and provided further that, if the cure 
cannot be reasonably accomplished within the additional ninety (90) calendar day period but the 
applicable facts, circumstances, and progress establish that a cure will be obtained within a 
reasonable period of time following the expiration of the ninety (90) calendar day period, the 
time for cure will be extended for an additional period of time as mutually agreed by the Parties 
(such agreement not to be unreasonably withheld); provided, further, that if a default is not 
cured within the applicable Cure Period, or, as applicable, written notice having been given and 
cure being commenced and diligently and continuously prosecuted, within the additional ninety 
(90) calendar days after the giving of the written notice, or, as otherwise applicable within the 
time mutually agreed by the Parties due to the defaulting Party not being able to obtain a cure 
within the additional ninety (90) calendar days after the defaulting Party gives written notice 
that it is commencing cure, then the non-defaulting Party may pursue the remedies set forth in 
this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any provision contained herein to the contrary, the City may 
exercise its rights under any fiscal surety posted to secure the completion of the Oak Creek 
Projects or the Subdivision Improvements after the expiration of the time to complete such 
improvements set forth in the Applicable Regulations. 

9.2 Remedies. If a Party is in default under this Agreement, the other Parties have available 
(to the maximum extent permitted by law, taking into consideration governmental immunities, if 
any) all remedies at law or in equity (including, but not limited to, injunctive relief, specific 
performance, and mandamus); however, no default by one Party shall constitute or be the basis 
for a default by a different Party, and no default by a Party shall: (1) entitle any Party to 
terminate this Agreement except as provided in Section 9.4; (2) entitle any Party to seek 
monetary damages; (3) relieve the City from its obligation to create and maintain the Oak Creek 
Payment Account within the Tax Increment Fund and to deposit therein the City Tax Increment 
Receipts and County Tax Increment Receipts; (4) relieve the City from its obligation to accept 
completed Subdivision Improvements and Oak Creek Projects that comply with the Applicable 
Regulations and this Agreement; (5) relieve the Authority from its obligation to verify the Oak 
Creek Project Cost; or (6) relieve the Authority from its obligation to reimburse verified Oak 
Creek Project Costs, subject to the terms, conditions, and limitations under this Agreement; or 
(7) relieve the Developer from complying with each requirement and obligation of the 
Developer under this Agreement.   

9.3 Suspension of Reimbursements. In addition to the remedies set forth in this Article 9, 
notwithstanding the Cure Period, if the Developer is in default under this Agreement, and the 
Developer is or becomes entitled to reimbursement by the Authority for Oak Creek Project 
Costs in accordance with this Agreement, the Authority shall have the right, notwithstanding the 
Cure Period, upon 30 day's written notice to Developer, to suspend (and place in a third-party 
escrow account for the benefit of the Party “A”) such reimbursements until the default has been 
cured.   

9.4 Partial Termination. In addition to the remedies set forth in this Article 9, if a Party is in 
default under this Agreement, the Authority may partially terminate this Agreement as to any 
Oak Creek Projects not then completed or under construction upon the condition that further 
written notice of the intent of the Authority to do so is given to the defaulting Party and to any 



lenders to or assignees of the defaulting Party that have been identified to the Authority and the 
lenders and assignees are given an additional 90 days to cure the default.   

9.5 Remedies Cumulative. The remedies described in this Article are in addition to and not 
in replacement of any other remedies at law or inequity that a Party may have as a result of any 
default under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 10 

FORCE MAJEURE 

10.1 Force Majeure. The term "force majeure" as employed herein shall mean and refer to 
acts of God; strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances: acts of public enemies, orders of 
any kind of the government of the United States, including, but not limited to, the State of 
Texas, Williamson County or the City of Leander, or any civil or military authority; 
insurrections; riots; epidemic; landslides; lightning, earthquakes; fires, hurricanes; storms, 
floods; washouts; droughts; arrests; restraint of government and people; civil disturbances; 
explosions; breakage or accidents to machinery, pipelines, or canals; or other causes not 
reasonably within the control of the Patty claiming such inability. The term "force majeure" will 
specifically include an attack by terrorists within the United States that results in a disruption of 
the financial markets for a period of more than one (1) week. 

10.2 Notice of Force Majeure. If, by reason of force majeure, any Party hereto shall be 
rendered wholly or partial l y unable to carry out its obligations under this Agreement, then such 
Party shall give written notice of the full particulars of such force majeure to the other Parties 
within thirty (30) days after the occurrence thereof. 

10.3 Suspension. The obligations of the Pat1y giving such notice, to the extent affected by the 
force majeure, shall be suspended during the continuance of the inability claimed, except as 
hereinafter provided, but for no longer period, and the Party shall endeavor to remove or 
overcome such inability with all reasonable dispatch. 

10.4 Settlement of Strikes. It is understood and agreed that the settlement of strikes and 
lockouts shall be entirely within the discretion of the Party having the difficulty, and that the 
above requirement that any Force Majeure shall be remedied with all reasonable dispatch shall 
not require that the settlement be unfavorable in the judgment of the Party having the difficulty. 

ARTICLE 11 

NOTICES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

11.1 Written Notice. Any notice to be given hereunder by any Party to another Party shall be 
in writing and may be affected by personal delivery, or by facsimile with confirmation of receipt 
by the addressee, or by sending said notices by registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the address set forth below. Notice shall be deemed given when delivered or when 
deposited with the United States Postal Service with sufficient postage affixed.  Any notice 
mailed to the City shall be addressed:  



City of Leander: 
Attn: City Manager 
P.0. Box 319 
200 West Willis Street 
Leander, Texas 78646-0319 
Facsimile: (512) 259-1605 
 
Leander TIRZ: 
Leander Development Authority 
P.0. Box 319 
200 West Willis Street 
Leander, Texas 78646-0319 
Facsimile: (512) 259-1605 

Copy to: 
Knight & Partners 
223 W. Anderson Lane, Ste A105 
Austin, Texas 78752 
Facsimile: (512) 323-5773 
 
Sentinel Land Company: 
Attn:  Tom Rielly 
160 Newport Center Drive 
Newport Beach, CA 92660 
Facsimile: (512)_______________ 

Copy to:  
Metcalfe Wolff Stewart & Williams 
Attention: Talley Williams 
221 W. 6th Street, Suite 1300 
Austin, Texas  
Facsimile: (512) 404-2245 
 

11.2 Applicable Law and Venue. The interpretation, performance, enforcement and validity 
of this Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Texas. Venue will be in a court of 
appropriate jurisdiction in Williamson County, Texas. 

11.3 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties. There 
are no other agreements or promises, oral or written, between the parties regarding the subject 
matter of this Agreement. This Agreement can be amended only by written agreement signed by 
the Developer, the City, the Zone, and the Authority. 

11.3. Attorney Fees.  A Party shall not be liable to another Party for attorney fees or cots 
incurred in connection with any litigation between the parties, in which a Party seeks to obtain a 
remedy from the other party, including appeals and post judgment awards.   

11.4. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, 
under present or future laws, it is the intention of the parties that the remainder of this 



Agreement not be affected and, in lieu of each illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision, a 
provision be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid, and enforceable and is as similar in 
terms to the illegal, invalid, or enforceable provision as is possible. 

11.5 Waiver.  Any failure by a Party to insist upon strict performance by the other party of 
any material provision of this Agreement will not be deemed a waiver or of any other provision, 
and such Party may at any time thereafter insist upon strict performance of any and all of the 
provisions of this Agreement.   

11.6 Waiver of Alternative Benefits.  The Parties acknowledge the mutual promises and 
obligations of the Parties expressed herein are good, valuable and sufficient consideration for this 
Agreement.  The Parties further acknowledge the Parties voluntarily elected the benefits and 
obligations of this Agreement, as opposed to the benefits available were Developer to have 
elected to develop the Property without the benefits and obligations of this Agreement, pursuant 
to and in compliance with the applicable City ordinances.  Therefore, save and except the right 
to enforce the obligations of the City, the Zone, or the Authority to perform each and all of the 
City’s, the Zone’s, or the Authority’s respective duties and obligations under this Agreement, 
Developer hereby waives any and all claims or causes of action against the City, the Zone, and 
the Authority the Developer may have for or with respect to any duty or obligation undertaken by 
Developer pursuant to this Agreement, including any benefits that may have been otherwise 
available to Developer but for this Agreement. 
  
11.7 No Joint Venture. The terms of this Agreement are not intended to and shall not be 
deemed to create any partnership or joint venture among the parties.  The City, the Zone, and the 
Authority, its past, present and future officers, elected officials, employees and agents, do not 
assume any responsibilities or liabilities to any third party in connection with the development of 
the Property.  The City, the Zone, and the Authority enter into this Agreement in the exercise of 
its public duties and authority to provide for development of property within the City pursuant to 
its police powers and for the benefit and protection of the public health, safety, and welfare. 
  
11.8 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is not intended, nor will it be construed, 
to create any third-party beneficiary rights in any person or entity who is not a party, unless 
expressly provided otherwise herein, or in a written instrument executed by both the City and 
the third party.  Absent a written agreement between the City and third party providing 
otherwise, if a default occurs with respect to an obligation of the City under this Agreement, any 
notice of default or action seeking a remedy for such default must be made by the Owner. 

11.9 Exhibits, Headings, Construction. All schedules and exhibits referred to in or attached to 
this Agreement are incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement for all purposes. The 
paragraph headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience only and do not enlarge or 
limit the scope or meaning of the paragraphs. Wherever appropriate, words of the masculine 
gender may include the feminine or neuter, and the singular may include the plural, and 
vice-versa.  

11.10 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 
which will be deemed to be an original, and all of which will together constitute the same 
instrument. This Agreement will become effective only when one or more counterparts, 
individually or taken together, bear the signatures of all of the parties. 



11.11 Time. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. In computing the number of days for 
purposes of this Agreement, all days will be counted, including Saturdays, Sundays and legal 
holidays; however, if the final day of any time period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal 
holiday, then the final day will be deemed to be the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or 
legal holiday. 

11.12 Authority for Execution. The City certifies, represents, and warrants that the execution 
of this Agreement is duly authorized and adopted in conformity with its City Charter and City 
ordinances. Developer hereby certifies, represents, and warrants that the execution of this 
Agreement is duly authorized and adopted in conformity with the articles of incorporation and 
bylaws or partnership agreement of each entity executing on behalf of Developer. 

[Execution Page Follows] 



Executed as of ___ day of ___, 2014 and Effective upon execution by all Parties.  

City of Leander, Texas  

 
______________________  
Mayor 

 
Attest:  
 
 
______________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
 
Approved as to Form:  
 
 
______________________________ 
City Attorney  

 
 

  



Leander Development Authority 

 

By: _________________________ 
Name: _________________________ 
Title: _________________________ 
 

 

  



Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Leander 

 

By: _________________________ 
Name: _________________________ 
Title: _________________________ 



Sentinel/Cotter Leander LLC, a Texas limited Liability company 

 

By: _________________________ 
Name: _________________________ 
Title: _________________________ 

  



 

EXHIBIT A 

Property 

  



 

EXHIBIT B 
Estimated Total for Each Category of the Oak Creek Projects 

TABLE I 

Water Projects – Necessary  
Connections 

Estimated Project Costs 

a. West Broade Street                $192,581 

b.  South Brook Drive $239,869 

Estimated Total for Water Projects $432,450 

 

TABLE II 

Drainage-Detention Projects – Regional 
Facilities/Ponds/Treatment Facilities 
(BMP’s) 

Estimated Project Costs 

a.  Water Quality Basin “A” $496,650 

b.  Water Quality Basin “B” $187,050 

c. Water Quality Basin “C” $374,100 

d. Water Quality Basin “D” $399,900 

Estimated Total for Drainage-Detention 
Projects 

$1,457,700 

 

TABLE III 

Transportation Projects – Required 
Roadways 

Estimated Project Costs 

a. W. Broade Street $973,247 

b.  South Brook Drive 

c.  Enhanced Bridge Treatment  

$598,977 

$285,000 

Estimated Total for  Transportation 
Improvements 

$1,572,224 



 

TABLE IV 

 

List of Possible Design Enhancements Estimated Project Costs 

a. Primary Entry Feature $181,845 

a. Secondary Entry Feature $25,800 

b. Native Area Revegatation $75,950 

c. Lake Treatments $129,000 

d. Trailheads $17,415 

e. Street Lighting $57,792 

 

 

  



EXHIBIT C 

Oak Creek Projects 

  



EXHIBIT C-1 

Water Projects 

  



EXHIBIT C-2 

Drainage-Detention Projects  

  



EXHIBIT C-3 

Transportation Projects 

  



EXHIBIT C-4 

Design Enhancements  



 

EXHIBIT D 

Form of Restrictive Covenant Agreement 

RESTRICTIVE COVENANT AGREEMENT 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
 
 This Restrictive Covenant Agreement (this "Agreement"), is entered into as of the ____ day 
of __________, 2014, by and between the City of Leander, Texas (the "City"), and Sentinel/Cotter 
Leander, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (the "Owner"). 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owner constructed or caused to be constructed ____________________ 
(the “Public Improvement”) on the property more particularly shown and described in Exhibit A 
attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes (the “Property”);  
 

WHEREAS, the Property is located in the Oak Creek Public Improvement District, which 
was created by the City to Resolution No. 14-013-00 (the “District”) on July 17, 2014 in 
accordance with Chapter 372, Texas Local Government Code (the “PID Act”);  
  
 WHEREAS, the design and construction of the Public Improvement was financed via the 
District; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Public Improvement is located on property that is or will be owned by the 
homeowner’s association for the Oak Creek Subdivision; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Owner desire to ensure the continued use of the Property and 
the Public Improvement for the benefit of the District and the Subdivision; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars 
($10.00), together with other good and valuable consideration, and mutual promises contained 
herein, Owner and the City agree as follows: 
 
 1. Owner hereby covenants to City that the Owner will not remove, destroy, or 
otherwise alter the Public Improvement without the prior written consent of the City; provided that 
in the case of landscaping, dead and/or sickly plants, trees and vegetation shall be removed and 
replaced as necessary to maintain the landscaping in an attractive and aesthetically-pleasing 
condition, and as otherwise necessary to comply with applicable City ordinances.  The Owner 
further covenants to the City that the use of the Property as authorized by the Oak Creek Planned 
Unit Development, set forth in Ordinance Number 14-039-00 and as a site for the Public 
Improvement shall not change without the written consent of the City.  
 



2. The terms and provisions hereof shall be deemed to be restrictive covenants 
encumbering and running with the Property and shall be binding upon the Owner and its 
successors and assigns.   
 
 3. (a)  The City and its legal representatives and assigns shall have the right to enforce 
this Agreement and the covenants, restrictions, and conditions herein by a proceeding at law or in 
equity.  The remedies available to the City under this Agreement are in addition to any other 
remedies that may be available to the City under its ordinances or state law.  Failure to enforce any 
covenant or restriction herein contained shall in no event be deemed a waiver of the right to do so 
thereafter.   
 
  (b)  In the event that the Owner or any subsequent owner shall violate, or indicate that 
such Owner or any subsequent owner intends to violate, any of the terms and provisions set forth 
in this Agreement, in addition to any other remedies available at law or in equity, the City shall 
have the right, but shall not be obligated, to sue such Owner or any subsequent owner, as 
applicable (the obligations of Owner or any subsequent owner under this Agreement being 
several, not joint) for and obtain a prohibitive or mandatory injunction or any other equitable 
remedy to prevent the breach of, or to enforce the observance of, the terms of this Agreement. 
The foregoing remedies shall be cumulative with, in addition to, and non-exclusive of one 
another, and the exercise of any one remedy shall not bar the exercise of any other remedy.  In 
the event of any legal action commenced by the City to enforce the obligations of Owner or any 
subsequent owner hereunder, the City shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney’s fees 
and costs from such Owner or any subsequent owner, as applicable. 
 

4.  Any notice, communication or disbursement required to be given or made 
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be given or made by facsimile, hand delivery, overnight 
courier, or by United States mail, certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage 
prepaid, at the address set forth below or at such other address as may be specified in writing by 
any Party hereto to the other parties hereto.  Each notice which shall be mailed or delivered in 
the manner described above shall be deemed sufficiently given, served, sent and received for all 
purpose at such time as it is received by the addressee (with return receipt, the delivery receipt or 
the affidavit of messenger being deemed conclusive evidence of such receipt) at the following 
addresses. 
 

If to City:  City of Leander 
    PO Box 319   

200 W Willis St 
    Leander, Texas 78641 
    Attn: City Manager 
    Facsimile: 512.259.1605 
 

With a copy to: Knight and Partners 
Attn: Paige Saenz, City Attorney   
223 W. Anderson, Suite A-105 

        Austin, Texas  78752    
Facsimile:  512.323.5773 

 
If to Owner:  Sentinel Cotter Leander, LLC 



    Attn:  Tom Rielly 
    700 Lavaca Street, Suite 900 

Austin, Texas 78701  
Facsimile:  __________________ 

  
With a copy to:  

 
5. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the Parties hereunder shall be 

governed by, and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas (without giving 
effect to the principles thereof relating to conflicts of law). 
 
 
 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT in 
Williamson County, Texas as of this _____ day of ___________________, 2014. 
 
      CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
                                   
Attest:      Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
 
                               
Debbie Haile, City Secretary  
 
      OWNER: 
 
  SENTINEL/COTTER LEANDER, LLC,  
  a Texas limited liability company 

 
 

By: ______________________  
Name:  ______________________ 

  Title:  ______________________ 
 
 
     
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 



     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the      day of                     , 
2014, by Christopher Fielder, Mayor, City of Leander. 
 
 
        
      NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE  
      OF TEXAS 
 
              
      PRINT OR TYPE NAME 
 
      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:    
 
 
 
 
  
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the      day of                     , 
2014, by _____________________, ___________________ of _________________________, 
Owner of the Property described herein. 
 
 
        
NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
              
      PRINT OR TYPE NAME 
 
      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:    
 
 
 
  



 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Metes and Bounds Description of the Property 
 

 

 























AMENITY CENTER

PARK

FIRE STATION

"B"

"A"

"C"

"D"

ALLEY

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

M
U

ST
AN

G
 B

R
O

O
K

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

LACEFLO
W

ER

C
O

U
LE

E
 D

R
IV

E PECOS STREET

A
N

G
E

LI
N

A
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

TO
P

A
Z 

P
A

TH
W

A
Y

FE
LD

S
P

A
R

 S
TR

E
A

M

TO
PAZ PATH

W
AY

NECHES S
TREET

P
E

C
A

N
 B

A
Y

O
U

WILLOW BROOK

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

C
ANADIAN SPR

ING
S CANADIAN SPRINGS

McKENZIE DRAW
WEST BROADE STREET

W
E

S
T 

B
R

O
A

D
E

 S
TR

E
E

T

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

FIREW
HEEL

90°0'0"

89°20'52"

9
0

°0
'0

"

90
°0

'2
1"

20'

WATER PROJECTS

WEST BROADE STREET
SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

TIRZ FUNDED IMPROVEMENTS



FIRE STATION

"B"

"A"

"C"
"D"

ALLEY

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

M
U

ST
AN

G
 B

R
O

O
K

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

LACEFLO
W

ER

C
O

U
LE

E
 D

R
IV

E PECOS STREET

A
N

G
E

LI
N

A
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

TO
P

A
Z 

P
A

TH
W

A
Y

FE
LD

S
P

A
R

 S
TR

E
A

M

TO
PAZ PATH

W
AY

NECHES S
TREET

P
E

C
A

N
 B

A
Y

O
U

WILLOW BROOK

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

C
ANADIAN SPR

ING
S CANADIAN SPRINGS

McKENZIE DRAW
WEST BROADE STREET

W
E

S
T 

B
R

O
A

D
E

 S
TR

E
E

T

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

FIREW
HEEL

90°0'0"

89°20'52"

9
0

°0
'0

"

90
°0

'2
1"

20'

FIRE STATION

"B"

"A"

"C"
"D"

WATER QUALITY BASIN "A"

REGIONAL FACILITIES/PONDS/TREATMENT (BMPs)
DRAINAGE-DETENTION PROJECTS-

WATER QUALITY BASIN "B"
WATER QUALITY BASIN "C"
WATER QUALITY BASIN "D"

TIRZ FUNDED IMPROVEMENTS

WATER QUALITY BASIN "A"

REGIONAL FACILITIES/PONDS/TREATMENT (BMPs)
DRAINAGE-DETENTION PROJECTS-

WATER QUALITY BASIN "B"
WATER QUALITY BASIN "C"
WATER QUALITY BASIN "D"

TIRZ FUNDED IMPROVEMENTS



FIRE STATION

ALLEY

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

M
U

ST
AN

G
 B

R
O

O
K

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

LACEFLO
W

ER

C
O

U
LE

E
 D

R
IV

E PECOS STREET

A
N

G
E

LI
N

A
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

TO
P

A
Z 

P
A

TH
W

A
Y

FE
LD

S
P

A
R

 S
TR

E
A

M

TO
PAZ PATH

W
AY

NECHES S
TREET

P
E

C
A

N
 B

A
Y

O
U

WILLOW BROOK

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

C
ANADIAN SPR

ING
S CANADIAN SPRINGS

McKENZIE DRAW
WEST BROADE STREET

W
E

S
T 

B
R

O
A

D
E

 S
TR

E
E

T

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

FIREW
HEEL

90°0'0"

89°20'52"

9
0

°0
'0

"

90
°0

'2
1"

20'

FIRE STATION TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS

WEST BROADE STREET
SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

ENHANCED BRIDGE TREATMENT

TIRZ FUNDED IMPROVEMENTS
TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS

WEST BROADE STREET
SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

ENHANCED BRIDGE TREATMENT

TIRZ FUNDED IMPROVEMENTS



AMENITY CENTER

PARK

FIRE STATION

"B"

"A"

"C"

"D"

ALLEY

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

M
U

ST
AN

G
 B

R
O

O
K

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

MIDDLE BROOK DRIVE

LACEFLO
W

ER

C
O

U
LE

E
 D

R
IV

E PECOS STREET

A
N

G
E

LI
N

A
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

N
A

V
A

S
O

TA
 S

TR
E

E
T

TO
P

A
Z 

P
A

TH
W

A
Y

FE
LD

S
P

A
R

 S
TR

E
A

M

TO
PAZ PATH

W
AY

NECHES S
TREET

P
E

C
A

N
 B

A
Y

O
U

WILLOW BROOK

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

C
ANADIAN SPR

ING
S CANADIAN SPRINGS

McKENZIE DRAW
WEST BROADE STREET

W
E

S
T 

B
R

O
A

D
E

 S
TR

E
E

T

SOUTH BROOK DRIVE

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALLEY

ALL
EY

FIREW
HEEL

90°0'0"

89°20'52"

9
0

°0
'0

"

90
°0

'2
1"

20'

AMENITY CENTER

PARK

FIRE STATION

"B"

"A"

"C"

"D"

PRIMARY ENTRY FEATURE

SECONDARY ENTRY FEATURE

LAKE TREATMENTS

NATIVE AREA RESTORATION

DESIGN ENHANCEMENTS

STREET LIGHTING

TRAILHEADS

TIRZ FUNDED IMPROVEMENTS

PRIMARY ENTRY FEATURE

SECONDARY ENTRY FEATURE

LAKE TREATMENTS

NATIVE AREA RESTORATION

DESIGN ENHANCEMENTS

STREET LIGHTING

TRAILHEADS

TIRZ FUNDED IMPROVEMENTS


	TIF Board - Signed Agenda
	06-02-14  Minutes TIF Board
	Executive Summary TIRZ project plan amendment ordinance
	Exhibit A1 -TIRZ Water Projects
	Exhibit A2 - TIRZ Drainage Projects
	Exhibit A3 - TIRZ Transportation Projects
	Exhibit A4 - TIRZ Design Enhancements
	Exhibit B - Project Plan spreadsheet with revisions and 5 year updates
	Ordinance TIRZ Project Plan Amendment 10 9 14.II
	Executive Summary Oak Creek TIRZ reimbursement agreement
	Att - TIRZ Reimbursement Agreement 10.10.14.Clean
	(a) The Developer will dedicate the Water Utility Projects, the Drainage-Detention Projects, the Transportation Projects, and the Trailheads and Street Lighting respectively described in Table IV(e) and (m) of Exhibit B and Exhibit C-4 (if constructed...
	(b) With respect to the Primary Entry Feature, the Secondary Entry Feature, the Native Area Revegetation, and the Lake Treatments, which are respectively described in Table IV(a), (b), (c), and (d) of Exhibit B and Exhibit C-4, if constructed, the Dev...

	Exhibit A1 - 125.575 ac legal description
	Exhibit A2 - 125.575 ac survey
	Exhibit A3 - 25 ac desc
	Exhibit A4 - 25 ac survey
	Exhibit C1 -TIRZ Water Projects
	Exhibit C2 - TIRZ Drainage Projects
	Exhibit C3 - TIRZ Transportation Projects
	Exhibit C4 - TIRZ Design Enhancements

